
THE HISTORY MUSEUM OF SIGHIŞOARA 
110 YEARS OF HISTORY 

The citadel of our town has 
been a major tourist attraction ever 
since the beginning of the 19'" 
century. The fascination for the 
Middle Ages was one of the major 
preoccupations of Romanticism 
and the members of the Hungan'an 
Historian Socieţy, holding assembiy 
in this town on the initiative of 
historian and MP Karl Fabritius 
în 1879, were fascinated by the 
multitudeof the medieval buildings, 
and it was then that the idea of 
organising a museum emerged. 

An exhibition was then organized, 
which inspired the young student 
Josef Bacon and the brothers 
Friedrich and Heinrich Kraus to lay 
the foundations of a history and 
art museum. This idea had already 
been promoted by the "Gross-Kokler 
Bote" newspaper, where the idea of 
using some of the citadel towers 
was supporte<l. Unfortunately 
the idea was abandoned, and 
resumed only 20 years later. At 
the anniver ary of the Hungarian 
jubilee in 1896 the government 
appealed to the communities to 
create humanitarian or cultural 
organi ations. In this context Josef 
Bacon's appeal was approved by the 
town council considering the lock 
Tower a goo<l place for a museum 
an<l taking also ioto account the 
town buclget. 1 

On June 24'", 1899 the museum 
"Alt Schaessburg", organised with 
the support of the ebastian Hann-
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the H istory Museum ef Sighişoara 
association, opened in the Clock 
Tower. In Josef Bacon's view, the 
purpose of this museum was to 
promote the cultural and spiritual 
values of the German communi ty 
of Sighişoara, to support local 
artists by organizingexhibitions and 
meetings, and to apply old styles in 
both urban and rural architecture.2 

Alongside with this museum, 
at the initiative of the same 
passionate custodian, Dr. Josef 
Bacon, in an outbuilding of the 
Clock Tower, in 1912 the H ygiene 

[useum was openecl exhibiting 
over 700 charts and drawings 
illustrating the epidemics which 
had devastatecl the town and also 
the town's demographic evolution. 
Other museums openecl in that 
period were The i\II11se11111 ef Saxon 
EthnogrcljJi?J', located in the "H ouse 
with the hingle Roof" (1908), and 
the chool [useum, housed by 
the vestry of the Monastery Church 
(1932).3 

This initiative of Josef Bacon ha<l 
the financial support, as has been 
pointcd out before, of the" ebastian 
Hann"-Association from ighişoara 

ever since the year 1904. Other 
supporters hacl been: Karl eraphin, 
Betty Schuller, Friedrich Meltzer, 
Julius Holitzer, Julius Misselbacher 
(1903-1963). The latter ha<l a major 
contribution to the systematic 
and scientific classification of the 
museum's fust coUections. 
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The Romanian community, no 
lesser, opened in 1937, in a house 
rented in the lower town, the 
museum of Romanian ethnography 
- The Ethnographic Museum ef the 
Târnave Region,4 founded by the 
Romanian ethnologist Gheorghe 
Cernea, a teacher from the village 
of Paloş-Ardeal. 

Thecommunistera brought about 
substantial changes in the evolution 
o f the museums of Sighişoara. In 
1952 the entire coUection o f the 
Saxon museum was nationalised, 
the museum now being housed in 
the Clock Tower only. The nam e 
of the museum had been also 
changed, varying from The Museum 
ef the Rayon ef Sighişoara in 1952 
to the The Municipal Museum 
of Sighişoara in 1968, up to The 
History Museum of Sighişoara, the 
actual name of the museum. 

A fter Gheorghe Cernea was 
arres ted in the 1950's, his coUection 
of Romanian ethnography was 
confiscated and distributed to 
o ther museums. The collection of 
icons on wood and glass was the 
only one to remain in Sighişoara.5 

In the 1970's some rooms on the 
second fl oor of the Vlad Dracul 
House were used by the museum 
to create an exhibition o f medieval 
weapons. The cohabitation with 
a restaurant being unusual, in 
1988 this collection was moved to 
the ground fl oor of the building 
housing the primary school of 
the Joseph H altrich High School, 
where can be found even today. 

In 1999 the old military prison 
of the town located on the ground 
fl oor of the Clock Tower was 
reorganized as the Torture Chamber, 
showing items and illustrations o f 
procedures of torture from the 
Codex Criminales Teresiana (1769), 
the last criminal law allowing the 
use of torture in penal proceedings 
under the Habsburg Monarchy. 

This anniversary is an opportuni ty 
for us to express our gratitude 
to our forerunners for all their 
efforts in the field of museology 
in Sighisoara, and at the same 
rime our commitment to further 
develop our museum according to 
the Standards of the 21 st century. 
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